
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
5th Floor, Courthouse  •  P.O. Box 1829  •  Fayetteville, North Carolina  28302-1829 

(910) 678-7771  •  Fax:  (910) 678-7770 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

W. MARSHALL FAIRCLOTH 
Chairman 

 
GLENN B. ADAMS 

Vice Chairman 
 

JEANNETTE M. COUNCIL 
KENNETH S. EDGE 
CHARLES E. EVANS 

JIMMY KEEFE 
LARRY L. LANCASTER 

 

CANDICE WHITE 
Clerk to the Board 

KELLIE BEAM 
Deputy Clerk 

 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 
TO:  Finance Committee Members (Chairman Lancaster, Council, Edge and Keefe) 
 
FROM: Candice H. White, Clerk to the Board   
 
DATE:  September 30, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Finance Committee Meeting – Thursday, October 6, 2016 
There will be a regular meeting of the Finance Committee on Thursday, October 6, 2016 
at 9:30 AM in Room 564 of the Cumberland County Courthouse located at 117 Dick 
Street, Fayetteville, NC. 

AGENDA 
 

1. Approval of Minutes – September 1, 2016 Finance Committee Regular Meeting (Pg. 2)  
 

2. 2017 Revaluation – Overview of Schedule of Values and Timeline (Pg. 18) 
 

3. Consideration of Approval of Internal Audit Report and Plan (Pg. 32) 
 

4. Consideration of Approval of Request to Surplus Solid Waste Equipment (Pg. 35) 

 
5. Update on DSS Business Intelligence Process and Implementation (Pg. 38) 

 
6. Joint 911 Center Consulting Services for the Purpose of Grant Application and 

Consolidation Planning (Pg. 41) 

 
7. Monthly Financial Report (Pg. 50) 

 
8. Other Items of Business (No Materials)    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
cc: Board of Commissioners; County Administration; Vicki Evans, Finance Director; Tammy Gillis, Director of Internal Audit and 

Wellness Services; County Legal; County Department Head(s); Sunshine List 
 



DRAFT 
CUMBERLAND COUNTY FINANCE COMMITTEE 

COURTHOUSE, 117 DICK STREET, 5TH FLOOR, ROOM 564 
SEPTEMBER 1, 2016-9:30 AM 

MEMBERS PRESENT: 

OTHER COMMISSIONERS 
PRESENT: 

OTHERS: 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Commissioner Larry Lancaster, Chairman 
Commissioner Jeannette Council 
Commissioner Kenneth Edge 
Commissioner Jimmy Keefe 

Commissioner Glenn Adams 
Commissioner Marshall Faircloth 

Amy Cannon, County Manager 
James Lawson, Deputy County Manager 
Tracy Jackson, Assistant County Manager 
Melissa Cardinali, Assistant County Manager 
Sally Shutt, Governmental Affairs Officer 
Rick Moorefield, County Attorney 
Phyllis Jones, Assistant County Attorney 
Deborah Shaw, Budget Analyst 
Kim Cribb, Budget Analyst and Grants Coordinator 
Keith Todd, Information Services Director 
Kim Honan, Enterprise Solutions Division Manager 
Lynn Smith, Business Analyst 
Sabrina Patterson, Business Analyst 
Jimmy Platter, Business Analyst 
Jeffrey Brown, Engineering and Infrastructure Director 
Brenda Jackson, Social Services Director 
Candice H. White, Clerk to the Board 
Press 

Commissioner Lancaster called the meeting to order. 

ITEMNO. /. _....._ __ 

In the interest of time, Amy Cannon, County Manager, requested the removal from the agenda of 
Item 4. 201 7 Revaluation-Overview of Schedule of Values and Time line and the addition under 
Item 9. Other Matters of Business of a Closed Session for Attorney/Client Matter(s) pursuant to 
NCGS 143-318.11(a)(3). Ms. Cannon stated the 2017 revaluation overview can be moved to the 
October meeting of the Finance Committee. 

MOTION: 

SECOND: 
VOTE: 

Commissioner Edge moved to approve the agenda to include the changes as 
requested by the county manager. 
Commissioner Council 
UNANIMOUS (4-0) 

1 



DRAFT 
I. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - AUGUST 4, 20 16 FTNANCE COMMITTEE SPECIAL 

MEETfNG 

MOTION: Commissioner Edge moved to approve the August 4, 2016 special meeting 
minutes. 

SECOND: Commissioner Council 
VOTE: UNANIMOUS (4-0) 

2. PRESENTATION BY ALLIANCE BEHAVIORAL HEALTH CARE 

BACKGROUND: 
Rob Robinson, Chief Executive Officer, Alliance Behavioral Healthcare will be presenting a 
financia l update as well as the latest information on Medicaid reform. 

RECOMMENDATION/PROPOSED ACTION: 
No action is required by the Committee. Presentation is for informational purposes only. 

****** 
Ms. Cannon recognized Rob Robinson, Alliance Behavioral Healthcare Chief Executive Officer, 
and Kelly Goodfellow, Alliance Behavioral Healthcare Chief Financial Officer. 

Ms. Goodfellow reviewed Alliance Funding below and stated the decrease between FY 16 and 
FY 17 is mostly due to Medicaid because during the course of any year, the Alliance receives a 
lot of retroactive Medicaid which, by the end of the year, causes the budget to be increased. Ms. 
Goodfellow stated the Alliance anticipates by the end of the year that amount for FY 17 will be in 
line with the amount for FY16. 

Alliance Funding 

FY16 

Medica1d $4 33,888,665 82% $392,551,423 80% 

Stato $60,132,706 11 % $59,573,096 12% 

Local $36,294,009 7% $37,243,884 8% 

Total $530,515,380 $489,368,403 

Ms. Goodfellow reviewed the service spending breakdown below for state/federal and 
Cumberland County funds the Alliance receives and stated state/federal dollars are utilized 
before tapping into local dollars. Ms. Goodfellow stated the Alliance uses almost all of the 
dollars allocated by Cumberland County which is $4.8 million. 

2 



DRAFT 
Service Spending 

All1ance Cumberland County - Service Expenses 

Penod 
Emling 

6/30/2014 

6/30/20.15 

5/31/2016 

Stale/FedPral Porllon 

$6,965,480 

$6.447 8 18 

$4.614.571 

County 
Po1hon 

$3,573,821 

$2,039.373 

$4,796,000 

Tot,JI 

$10,539,302 

$8.487,19 1 

$9,410,571 

Commissioner Keefe asked why the county's portion dropped so drastically in FY I 5. Ms. 
Goodfellow stated about that time there was a shift in the provider network and Cape Fear Valley 
increased its outpatient behavioral healthcare services. Ms. Goodfellow stated the Alliance is 
now definitely back in line as far as services provided. Commissioner Keefe inquired about the 
reduction in the state/federal portion for FY 16. Ms. Goodfellow stated the reduction could have 
been from pressure put on those dollars by increased services provided by any of the other three 
communities across the Alliance' s catchment area. Ms. Goodfellow explained at the beginning 
of each year, the Alliance allocates dollars across its four catchment areas according to historical 
spending; however, throughout the course of the year pressure will be put on state dollars if 
increased services are provided in any of the four catchment areas. 

Commissioner Adams asked who determines how dollars are allocated when increased services 
are provided. Ms. Goodfellow stated state dollars are allocated by the Alliance based on need 
and the challenge for the Alliance is that the state dollars it receives are not allocated by 
catchment area. Ms. Goodfellow stated the Alliance still has the remainder of FY 16 to account 
for as well as end of year adjustments, and she anticipates the number will go up closer to that of 
FY l5 because spending increased in Cumberland County. 

Commissioner Adams requested service spending to include state/federal portions and county 
portions for the other three counties in the Alliance's catchment area for purposes of comparison. 
Ms. Goodfellow stated this can be provided for the entire fiscal year once the books close. 
Commissioner Council stated if the allocations do not appear equitable at the end of the fiscal 
year, she would like the Alliance to provide a plan to make the allocations equitable. Ms. 
Goodfellow stated there was also a $9 million state legislative reduction this year and what is not 
reflected in the state/federal portion is the amount of money the Alliance takes from its fund 
balance to cover the state services. Ms. Goodfellow stated this is another part of why an increase 
will be seen when the books close and the fund balance is allocated. 

With regard to the Alliance Cumberland Fund Balance below, Ms. Goodfellow stated the 
Alliance anticipates spending all of the $5 million from FY 15 in FY 16, and through the course of 
the first two years, the provider network was challenged and Cape Fear Valley Hospital System 
began its crisis and behavioral services. Ms. Goodfellow stated this year appears more 
normalized and a normal trend of utilizing all allocated dollars will continue. 

3 



DRAFT 
All iance Cumberland Fund Balance 

PeriOd End1ng 

6/30/2014 $4,800,000 $3,573,821 $2,426, 179 

6/:.iU/2015 $4.800,000 $2,03!!.373 $5, 1A6,806 

5/3 1/2016 $4,800,000 $4,796,000 $5, 190.806 

Ms. Goodfellow stated the Alliance worked with the county on various plans for utilization of 
the fund balance and outlined the fund balance plan below to utilize the $5 million fund balance. 
Mr. Robinson stated the funds will remain in Fayetteville/Cumberland County. 

Fund Balance Plan 
• $ 1.3M for renovation of Alliance office space 
• $2.25M to fund FY 17 
• $800K for Roxie improvements 
• $ 1. 17M remaining will cover current and expansion of services; ability to reinvest in the 

community 

Ms. Goodfe llow briefly reviewed how the AUi.ance is adhering to its state contractual 
requirements and its senate bill requi rements as outlined below and stated the goal of the 
Alliance is to spend as much of the revenue it receives on services. 

Financial Requirements 
• SB208 as of May 31 

• Current Ratio (assets to liabilities) - 2. 76 ( 1.00 is requirement) 
• Percent Paid - 99.69% (90% payment of claims is requirement) 

• State Contract as of May 31 
• Defensive Interval - 99.2 1 (30 is requirement for days on hand for cash) 
• Medical Loss Ratio - 84.75% (85% is requirement for service dollars spent fo r 

revenue received; ebbs and flows through year;% is cumulative) 

Ms. Goodfellow stated one of the main goals of the Medicaid waiver is to be able to save money 
and reinvest in the community and the Alliance spent the better pati of the fiscal year focusing 
on how it can use its fund balance to reinvest in the community by using a gap needs assessment, 
working with stakeholders and talking with its Board and CFAC members. Ms. Goodfellow 
outlined the reinvestment plan below that came out of this process. 

Reinvestment Plan for Fund Balance 
• As we invest in developing quality services, we continue to save 
• Plan will address unmet needs 
• Sustainable plan through future fund balance and service dollars 
• Strong management oversight will allow us to make adjustments as needed 

Ms. Goodfellow also outlined foc us areas of the reinvestment plan below. 

4 



DRAFT 
Focus Areas 

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

Develop/expand community-based services 
Manage utilization of high-cost services 
Improve access to services 
Provider stability through rate increases 
Incentiveize evidence based practices 
Reduce ED admissions and wait times 
Integrated care activities 
Opiate/benzodiazepine misuse 

Ms. Goodfellow provided highlights of the reinvestment plan outlined below and stated part of 
the $29 million reinvestment plan below includes $6 million for a Wake Crisis Center that will 
begin construction this fi scal year; Behavioral Healthcare Urgent Care pilot program for all four 
counties for $2 million that will attribute to keeping clients out of the emergency department and 
focus on behavioral health needs; Child Facility Based Crisis regional plan at $5 million to help 
keep chi ldren out the hospital; and $6.3 million for additional service rate increases to stabilize 
the provider network; as of July I to allow for residential services to provide for the intellectual 
disability population, for increases for basic outpatient and for high need community services. 
Ms. Goodfellow stated the Alliance has heard time and time again that its rates were not 
sufficient so it was excited to be able to increase service rates for its providers. 

Reinvestment Plan 

Description 

Wake Crisis Facility 
NC START 
Integrated Care/Expansion 
Enhanced Therapeutic Foster Care 
Trauma-informed Therapeutic Foster 

Care 
ICF Transitions with 83 Funds 
Technology-Enabled Homes 
Short-term PRTF beds 
First Responders Reimbursement 
Mobile Crisis 
BH Urgent Care 
Child Facility Based Crisis 
Peer Respite 
Rapid Response 
Peer Transition Teams 
10 0 Crisis Respite Facility 
Intensive Wrap Around 
Group Living Step Down 
Additional Service Rate Increases 
Durham Crisis Facility Renovation 
Supportive Housing 

Total 

FY17 
Fundmg Amount 

$ 6.000,000 
$ 650,000 
$ 750,000 
$ 905,000 

$ 100,000 

$ 1,000,000 
$ 25,000 
$ 900,000 
$ 310,000 
$ 700,000 
$ 2.000,000 
$ 5,000,000 
$ 300,000 
$ 240,000 
$ 200,000 
$ 985.500 
$ 302,400 
$ 191 ,625 
$ 6,300,000 

$ 2.000,000 
$ 500.000 
$ 29,359,525 

Projected 
Implementation 

7/1/2017 
7/1/2016 
7/1/2016 
7/1/2016 

12/1/2016 

7/1/2016 
7/1/2016 
7/1/2016 
9/1/2016 
8/1/2016 
10/1/2016 
10/1/2017 
1/1/2017 
9/1/2016 
3/1/201 7 
10/1/2016 
9/1/2016 
7/1/2016 
7/1/2016 
1/1/2017 
7/1/2016 

Commissioner Keefe asked how much of the reinvestment plan was Cumberland County based. 
Ms. Goodfellow provided highlights of the reinvestment plan's impact to Cumberland County: 

5 



DRAFT 
Rate increases cover entire Alliance catchment area 

• NC START is a regionally-based program 
• Most services cover entire catchment area 

o Expanded PRTF beds, enhanced Therapeutic Foster Care, Rapid Response beds, 
etc. 

• Mobile Crisis redesign will benefit entire catchment area 
• Rate increase for suboxone, specifically for Cumberland County addJessing opiates 

Commissioner Council stated the Board wants providers that are located in and investing in 
services in Cumberland County so the expectation is that clients will not receive services from 
providers based in other counties. Mr. Robinson stated the Alliance has done a lot to redesign 
the system and expand providers in Cumberland County but a lot of communities do not have 
services such as state hospitals, residential placements, and services for high need and high 
complex clients are scattered throughout the state and on occasion clients have to be placed out 
of state. Commissioner Adams stated he receives calls that services are being provided in 
Cumberland County by providers that come in from other counties and that the state gives local 
providers the necessary paperwork but the Alliance will not open up the network for placements. 
Commissioner Edge spoke to the tightening of requirements for providers and the credentials and 
certifications that have become necessary over time. Commissioner Edge stated the services 
being provided in Cumberland County now arc far better than before the existence of the MCO 
and more services are being provided for less dollars. 

Mr. Robinson provided highlights of the state's Medicaid Reform Plan and stated private 
commercial MCOs will be brought in through an RFP process to manage the physical health side 
and the Provider Lead Entities (PLEs) or hospitals will be determined based on the market and 
what the providers decide to do. 

Medicaid Reform Plan 
• Six regions across state 
• Three commercial MCOs and up to 12 PLEs 
• Timeline 

o DHHS to submit Waiver by June 1, 201 6 
o CMS approval anticipated January 1, 20 18 
o PHP (PLE and MCOs) "go-live" July 1, 2019 
o LME/MCO system left as is until July I, 2023 

Proposed Regions 

Region II Region IV Region VI 

Region I 

Legend Region Ill 

lnetiJtftto• 

lltUton PopuloUon• 
1M~ 

Region V 

6 



DRAFT 
Mr. Robinson stated behavioral healthcare will remain as is for seven to eight years and there is 
some movement to stay as it currently is longer than that; however, commercial managed care 
companies are pushing hard to take over current LME/MCO functions. Mr. Robinson reviewed 
the following and stated the four proposed regions are open for change due to factors other than 
geography. Mr. Robinson noted the behavioral health system does not line up with the physical 
health side so there will be crossover into multiple catchment areas. Mr. Robinson stated as for 
mergers, the state would like to further reduce the seven MCOs down to four. Mr. Robinson 
stated the Alliance has been partnered with the Sandhills Center but Sandhills is not willing to 
merge, so at this point the DHHS Secretary is working with all the MCOs to figure out how to 
get down to four. Mr. Robinson stated the job before the Alliru1ce at this time is to keep 
moving forward, show its value to the system and show it is indispensible moving forward. 

New Developments 
• Four specialty health regions for behavioral health 
• Alliance to merge with Sandhills to form South Central Region 
• LME/MCO implantation plans to be developed and submitted by end of summer 

Proposed Regions 

Wts(!m B«q{qn: Noah Ctnt@l Rtq(On: 
Smol(y Mounlllln Center Cardinal Innovations Health~ are Solutions 

• P• rrntrs Behtv/orel Htalth Mllntg tmtnr 
Mlldl~eld Members: 216,858 (2m) 

ConttrPolnt Humen Services 
Modlu/d Members: 410,066 (29%) 

Soum Ctolt8/ Btqlon: 
Alliance Bthtvlotal Htalthcett 
Sandhill• Center 
Medlotld Mllmbtrs: 378,136 Ill" ) 

Cts(!m Repton: 
Trillium He11/th Resourcot 

I• Eastpointe 
MedlcaldMembetl: 361,696 (24%) 

3. CONSIDERATION OF N.C. CIVIL WAR HISTORY CENTER RESOLUTION 

BACKGROUND: 
The N.C. C ivil War History Center (the Center) is seeking to develop a history center in the 
Haymount area of Fayetteville. The plans for the Center have been approved by the State of 
North Carolina. To assist in leveraging State funds for this project, the N.C. Civil War History 
Center is seeking local government support. 

The Center has provided the resolution recorded below for consideration. The resolution 
commits the Board of Commissioners to making a good-faith effort to identify resources to fund 
$7.5 million of the $15 million needed in local government support. Funding is needed over a 
two to tlu·ee year period. 

7 



DRAFT 
RECOMMENDATION/PROPOSED ACTION: 
The N.C. Civil War History Center is seeking approval of the resolution recorded below which 
commits the Board of Commissioners to make a good-faith effort to identify resources to fund 
$7.5 million and release the funds contingent upon receiving matching state support. The Center 
also requests the funds of $7.5 million be identified no later than January 15, 2017. 

RESOLUTION ON -----

Whereas more than $2,000,000 in state and private monies have been expended over the past eight 
years toward the creation of the North Carolina Civil War History Center; 

Whereas those plans demonstrate a major economic benefit to the community including attracting up 
to 130,000 new tourists annually, creating more than 200 permanent new jobs, and generating 
almost $20,000,000 in new economic activity; 

Whereas the development of the $65,000,000 History Center will serve as a catalyst for major 
economic development resulting in a substantial increase in property values in the Haymount 
area; 

Whereas the citizens of Fayetteville and Cumberland County have raised almost $6,000,000 from 
local businesses, foundations, and individuals toward the History Center; 

Whereas in May 2015 the City of Fayetteville pledged $1,000,000 to the History Center; 

Whereas the plans for the Center have been approved by the State of North Carolina; 

Whereas funds from the State of North Carolina in combination with admissions, rentals, food and 
beverages, and endowment income will cover the annual operating expenses; 

Whereas the City or County can realize all the benefits of the History Center without being 
responsible for the annual operating expenses; 

Whereas $15,000,000 in local government support is deemed necessary to leverage sufficient state 
funds to realize the plans and the projected economic benefits; 

Whereas state legislative leadership has indicated that it will only consider providing significant state 
monies after demonstration of significant local governmental support; 

Whereas local government support will only be provided after the state of North Carolina makes its 
commitment to the project; and 

Whereas state funds likely will be secured incrementally over a two- to three-year period 
commencing in 2018, and the local governmental monies will follow the state monies. 

Now, therefore, be it resolved: 

8 



DRAFT 
That the Cumberland County Commissioners will commit to making a good-faith effort to identify 

the necessary resources to fund $7.5 million of the $15 million needed in local government 
support and; 

That release of these funds is contingent upon receiving matching state support and that county funds 
will be released incrementally, 25 cents on every state dollar, as state funds are committed 
and; 

Assuming that the county funds are identified, the Cumberland County Commissioners will make 
this commitment by no later than January 15, 2017. 

****** 

Melissa Cardinali, Assistant County Manager, stated county management received a request 
from Mac Healy, Chairman of the N.C. Civil War History Center Foundation, to present a 
resolution regarding funding for the N.C. Civil War History Center. Ms. Cardinali recognized 
Mr. Healy who read and expanded on the resolution recorded above. 

Ms. Cannon stated she would feel remise in her role as the county manager if she did not speak 
to the multiple other "asks" that have come to her level and not yet risen to the Board level that 
equate to $41 million, which includes the $7.5 million "ask" for the N.C. Civil War History 
Center. Ms. Cannon stated it is difficult to make a commitment by resolution for one project out 
of total asks of $41 million, and it is exceptionally difficult because the county does not know 
what the 2017 revaluation revenue potential will be. Ms. Cannon stated although the county will 
not know the bottom line at the beginning of 201 7, it should have a better idea of its standing 
with revaluation and other revenue sources and be able to look at all of the "asks" together. Ms. 
Cannon stated although the county is already working on its FY18 budget and putting together a 
list, budget requests are not normally presented September 1. Ms. Cannon apologized for 
dropping $41 million worth of "asks" on the table at once and stated it is not meant to show a 
lack of support for much needed community projects or to show disrespect towards any members 
of the N.C. Civil War History Foundation who should be commended for their efforts. 
Discussion followed. No action was taken. 

4. REMOVED FROM AGENDA 

5. CONSIDERATION OF REQUEST TO SURPLUS SOLID WASTE EQUIPMENT AT 
THE WILKES ROAD PROCESSING FACILITY 

BACKGROUND: 
Last fiscal year, the Solid Waste Department purchased a new Morbark horizontal grinder for the 
Wilkes Road Processing facility to replace one of the two Morbark tub grinders at the site. 
Although, this piece of equipment is no longer in service at the facility, it is still a functional 
piece of equipment after minor repairs were made. 

Over the last couple of months, several vendors have expressed interest in the tub grinder. 
Therefore, it would be advantageous for the Department if the machine were to be declared 
surplus property and placed on GovDeals.com to be sold as the County typically does with other 

9 



DRAFT 
equipment that no longer serves a useful purpose for the organization. Since this machine has a 
value of over $30,000, it requires the Board of Commissioners to declare the property surplus. 

RECOMMENDATION/PROPOSED ACTION: 
The Interim Solid Waste Director along with County Management recommend that the Finance 
Committee approve the Solid Waste Department's request to declare the Morbark tub grinder 
(Serial No. 575-025, Model 1400) as surplus property and forward it to the Board of 
Commissioners for it consideration at their September 6th meeting. 

****** 

Jeffrey Brown, Engineering and Infrastructure Director, reviewed the background information 
recorded above. 

MOTION: 

SECOND: 
VOTE: 

Commissioner Edge moved to approve the Solid Waste Department's request to 
declare the Morbark tub grinder as surplus property. 
Commissioner Council 
UNANIMOUS (4-0) 

6. UPDATE REGARDING THE OVERHILLS PARK WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF REVENUE BOND 
ANTICIPATION NOTE IN THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $1,3 79,000 

BACKGROUND: 
In late July 2016, the Local Government Commission (LGC) solicited proposals for the revenue 
bond anticipation notes (RBANs). Three banks submitted letters of commitment, with Carter 
Bank and Trust coming in with the lowest rate. On August 15, 2016, the Board approved the 
bond order and note resolution which authorized the issuance and sale of water and sewer system 
RBANs. The next scheduled step was to close with the bank. However, prior to the closing the 
bank withdrew their letter of commitment when it was brought to their attention the commitment 
would be with Overhills Park Water and Sewer District, not Cumberland County. 

The LGC has since made contact with PNC Bank who had the second lowest rate. PNC has 
agreed to the commitment with the district at a rate of 1.36% per annum. The resolution will be 
brought back to the Board of Commissioners because the resolutions are specific to the bank as 
well as their interest rates. In anticipation of the resolution approval, the bank closing has been 
scheduled for September 8 which falls within the project's bid expiration timeframe and will 
cause no further delays. 

The finance director and county management will be recommending approval of the resolution 
during the September 6 meeting of the Overhills Park Water and Sewer District Board. 

RECOMMENDATION/PROPOSED ACTION: 
No action needed for information purposes only. 

****** 

10 



DRAFT 
Melissa Cardinali, Assistant County Manager, reviewed the background information recorded 
above. No action was taken. 

7. PRESENTATION ON BUSINESS PROCESS RECOMMENDATIONS FOR THE 
FOOD AND NUTRITION SERVICES PROGRAM AT THE DEPARTMENT OF 
SOCIAL SERVICES 

BACKGROUND: 
As a part of the Board of Commissioners approved Business Intelligence Initiative, the 
Enterprise Solutions Division within Information Services recently conducted a comprehensive 
business process review for the Department of Social Services. The business process review 
concentrated on the Food and Nutrition Services within the Economic Services Division. 
Through this business process review, several opportunities for business process improvements 
were discovered. 

Lynn Smith will provide a presentation to review the current processes, business process 
improvement opportunities, and recommended solutions to improve these business processes in 
the area of FNS Recertifications. 

RECOMMENDATION/PROPOSED ACTION: 
Information Services asks that the Finance Committee endorse the Enterprise Solutions 
Divisions' continued work on a phased-in approach and monitoring of the business process 
improvements for FNS Recertifications and provide monthly reports to the Finance Committee. 

****** 

James Lawson, Assistant County Manager reviewed the background information recorded above 
and stated recommendations for applications were broken down into seven phases for 
implementation, and since last month a template was developed as a guide for timelines, action 
steps, potential challenges and which staff are to be involved in the various processes. Mr. 
Lawson stated conversations have gone on throughout the month between DSS Director Brenda 
Jackson, Information Services Director Keith Todd and himself to organize the implementation 
plan. Mr. Lawson stated a kick off was held during which an overview of the plan was presented, 
a steering committee was organized and staff were assigned to workgroups for the each of the 
seven phases. Mr. Lawson stated a biweekly meeting schedule was also developed to review 
progress, identify challenges and strategize. Mr. Lawson stated the workgroups will act as boots 
on the ground and report back to the steering committee that will in tum provide reports to Ms. 
Jackson, Mr. Todd and himself. 

Mr. Lawson recognized Lynn Smith, Business Analyst, who provided the following presentation 
beginning with a review of the agenda. 

FOOD AND NUTRITION SERVICES 
RECERTIFICATIONS BUSINESS PROCESS REVIEW 

11 



DRAFT 

Agenda 
• Recertifications Organizational Structure 
• Fact Findings 
• Recertifications Comparison ( 6 Month Period) 
• Percentage of Population Receiving FNS Benefits 
• Recertifications Staffing Analysis 
• Recertifications Recommendations 
• Value Added Summary 
• Recommended Rollout Phases 
• OST Comments 
• Client Tracking 

Ms. Smith reviewed the recertifications/organization structure at the time of observation and fact 
findings as follows: 

Recertifications I Organizational Structure 
• Program Manager 
• 3- Supervisors 
• 3 9 - Case Workers 
• 3 - Time Limited Staff 
• 3 - Medicaid Workers Assisting 

Fact Fin dings 
• Recertifications received by the 15th of the month must be completed by the end of the 

month. Recertifications received after the 15th of the month must be completed within 30 
days following receipt. 

• Any recertification received after the 30th of the month is considered late and becomes an 
expedite. Case workers must key a new (shorter version) application for these cases. 

• Receptionists (Processing Assistant III's) do not make changes in NCFAST (North 
Carolina Families Accessing Services through Technology). 

• Some case workers take laptops home so they can work in the evenings. 
• FNS workers are having to work Saturdays (1 out of 3 per month is mandatory) to keep 

up with recertifications. (Approved overtime from January 8 through June 30, 2016) 
• Changes include change of address, household dynamic, change in job/salary, etc. At the 

time of these observations, changes were behind 111 for December and 847 for January. 
Changes are now current. 

• There is a 8% projected increase in the number of recertifications from 2015 to 2016. 
• Customers are directed from the 3 rct floor to the 1st floor to have their paperwork scanned. 
• There is no standard for dictation (template). 

Ms. Smith highlighted recertification comparisons below and stated recertification comparions 
for January through March are actual numbers taken from end-of-day reports in addition to client 
tracking information when clients check in, and April through September numbers came from a 
report through NCFast that shows the number of cases coming up for recertification for those 
months. 

12 



DRAFT 

Recertifications Comparison 
January through September 

20 14-201 6 

Ill! 

~ 
- ~ ,.. 

-~ ~ I~ 
f- !i 

- - - -

0 --- .,... -'~ 

_j 

1-

1--

1-- -

"'< 

2014 

• 2015 

2016 

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP 

Source: End-of-Day Reports plus Client Tracking Information 
Totals: 2014 - 37,387; 2015 - 36, 189; 20 16-39,104 (+8%) 

Ms. Smith disp layed the chart below and stated 2 1% of the Cumberland County population or 
70,845 individuals are receiving FNS benefits. 

Percentage Populations Receiving FNS Benefi ts 

Mecklenburg - 15%- (150,874) 

• BLK1Comba 251.275 

• CumbEJIIOnd 329.403 

Forsylh 364.248 

• Guilford 512.273 

• Mecklenburg 
1.013. 199 

•onslow 193.20<1 

Ms. Smith stated the staffing analysis does not take into account all of the staff of the Economic 
Services Division and was conducted on FNS alone. Ms. Smith stated a bus iness process review 
will need to be completed on all areas of Economic Services Division before staff 
recommendations can be determined. Ms. Smith explained the staffing formula to determine the 
number of staff required and provided highlights of the staffing analysis below. 

13 



DRAFT 
Recertifications Staffing Analysis 

-.----
Staffing 

CY 2015 Recerts Total Time Changes Total Time 
Staff Current Staffing Differential 

Required Staffing Differential with all42 
Posit ions Filled 

January 4934 0.83 1031 0.5 37 33 -4 L_ 

Februarv 5228 0.83 803 0.5 38 33 -5 4 

March 5090 0.83 1057 0.5 38 33 -5 4 

April 4924 0.83 1073 0.5 37 33 -4 5 

May 4717 0.83 946 0.5 35 33 -2 7 -
June 5623 0.83 1272 0.5 42 33 -9 0 

July 4717 0.83 1073 0.5 35 33 -2 7 

Auaust 5104 0.83 987 0.5 38 33 -5 4 

September 5116 0.83 946 0.5 37 33 -4 5 

October 4829 0.83 1098 0.5 36 33 -3 6 

November 4596 0.83 713 0.5 33 36 3 9 

December 5407 0.83 705 0.5 38 36 -2 4 

AVERAGE 5024 0.83 975 0.5 37 34 -3 5 

Ms. Smith reviewed recertifications recommendations and recertifications va lue added summary: 
• Add 1 additional scanner to Reception Desk #32 
• Add 2 phones to the intake area 
• Create a Change Team of 2 or 3 dedicated employees 
• Create a standard dictation template 
• Add a Customer Service Survey to the DSS website 
• Add recertification and change forms to DSS website 
• Reclassify Processing Assistants at the reception areas 

Recertifications Value Added Summary 

Process lmorovement Value Added 
Improves customer service - Customers will no longer 

Add o scanner to Reception Desk # 32 hove to go to the 1•1 floor to have documents 
scanned. 

Add 2 additional phOnes to the Intake Eliminates non-value added steps which Is o time 
area savings for the Intake Workers. 

Process timely changes. Reduces duplicated work. 

Create o Change Team Ensures data In NCFAST Is more consistent and up to 
dote. Change team con process cases once 
chonQes tor the dov ore completed. 
Makes Information easier to find for the next worker. 

Create a standard dictation template Ensures oil Information Is gathered and properly 
noted. 

Add o Customer Service Survey to the Better understand the needs of the customer. 
DSSwebslte Increase managements' knowledge of the public's 

oerceotlon. 
Add recertification and change forms Customer convenience. Forms will be more readily 
to DSS website accessible to customers. 
Reclassify and train the Processing 

Obtains timely Interviews and decreases processing Assistants so that they con scan. 
conduct the Interview and pend cases lime for case workers. Able to assist during busy 

lnNCFAST periods. Supports the elimination of drop boxes. 

14 



DRAFT 
Ms. Smith then reviewed the recommended rollout phases below and shared the Operational 
Support Team's (OST) comments. 

Rollout Phases Recommendations 

1st Add a scanner to Reception Desk #32 and phones to intake areas 

2nd Create a Change Team 

3rd 
Add a Customer Service Survey to the DSS website 
Add recertification and change forms to the DSS website 

4th Create a standard dictation template 

5th Reclassify and train the Processing Assistants 

Ms. Smith stated future considerations include Client Tracking and further analysis will be 
conducted on Client Tracking to evaluate it for replacement, and other areas of DSS that utilize 
Client Tracking need to be reviewed before any analysis can be completed. Ms. Smith stated 
Laserfiche will be researched to replace FNS process for Client Tracking which is used for the 
following: 

• End-of-Day report from Central Records for recertifications received by mail or drop box 
• Employees' Day Sheets 
• Signing in and out for work 
• Supervisors utilize it to check employees attendance before assigning cases 
• Tracking the amount of time spent on a case 
• Allows Intake Workers to monitor when customers are waiting to be seen 

Consensus was to endorse the Enterprise Solutions Divisions' continued work on a phased-in 
approach and monitoring of the business process improvements for FNS Recertifications and 
provide monthly reports to the Finance Committee. 

8. MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT 

BACKGROUND: 
The financial report is for fiscal year 2016, June year-to-date, as of August 15. Highlights 
include: 

• Revenues 
o Ad Valorem tax collections finished out strong for the year at 99.25% of the tax 1 

levy and 1.18% over budget 
o Sales tax collections are strong (Note: the FY16 total is short two collection 

months compared to the FY15 total which was short only one month) 
o Restricted Intergovernmental - Health is slightly lower in total because of a 

pending entry that will be offset by charges and services and an period 
adjustment entry that is forthcoming 

o Interest income is showing a negative amount for the period because of the 
timing of the interest allocation to other funds 

15 



DRAFT 
• Expenditures 

o General Fund expenditures remain in line with budget and previous year patterns 

• Crown center expense summary/prepared food and beverage and motel tax 
o Income and expenses remain in line with budget and last year's actuals 

RECOMMENDATION/PROPOSED ACTION: 
No action needed- for information purposes only. 

****** 

Ms. Cardinali reviewed the financial report highlights as recorded above. 

9. OTHER MATTERS OF BUSINESS 

MOTION: 

SECOND: 
VOTE: 

MOTION: 
SECOND: 
VOTE: 

MOTION: 
SECOND: 
VOTE: 

Commissioner Keefe moved to go into closed sesston for Attorney-Client 
Matter(s) pursuant to NCGS 143-318.11(a)(3). 
Commissioner Council 
UNANIMOUS (6-0) 

Commissioner Lancaster moved to reconvene in open session. 
Commissioner Council 
UNANIMOUS (6-0) 

Commissioner Edge moved to adjourn. 
Commissioner Council 
UNANIMOUS (6-0) 

There were no other matters of business. 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 11:45 a.m. 

16 



JOSEPH R. UTLEY, JR. 
Tax Administrator 

CUMBERLAND 
COUNTY 

NORT H CAROL I NA 

OFFICE OF THE TAX ADMINISTRATOR 

ITEMNO. cq. 
AMY B. IGNLAW 

Chief of Assessment and Collections 

TAMI K. BOTELLO 
Chief of Real Estate and Mapping 

MEMO FOR THE AGENDA OF THE OCTOBER 6, 2016 
MEETING OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE 

TO: 

FROM: 

THROUGH: 

DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

Presenter: 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEMBERS 

JOSEPH R. UTLEY, JR., TAX ADMINISTRATOR 

MELISSA CARDINALI, ASSISTANT COUNTY MANAGER FOR 
FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 

SEPTEMBER 23, 2016 

2017 REVALUATION - OVERVIEW OF SCHEDULE OF VALUES 
AND TIMELINE 

Joseph R. Utley, Jr., Tax Administrator 

Estimate of Committee Time Needed: 10 Minutes 

BACKGROUND 

NCGS 105-286 requires counties to reappraise all real property every 8 years. Cumberland 
County's next general reappraisal is scheduled for January 1, 2017. 

This is the second of two presentations meant to serve as informational sessions prior to the 
October 17, 2016 Board of Commissioner's meeting. This presentation will inform the Finance 
Committee members about the schedule of values and future timeline. 

RECOMMENDATION/PROPOSED ACTION 

This presentation is for informational purposes only. No action by the Finance Committee is 
required. 

Courthouse • 5111 Floor • Suite 527 • P.O. Box 449 • Fayetteville • Nott h Carolina 28302-0449 
(910) 678-7507 • Fax: (910) 678-7581 



201 .7 · R.evaluati·on 
O~erv.i:ew· of S'chedule of Values and Timeli:ne 

Joe Utley, Tax Administrator ~ 

Cumberland County Tax Administration 

October 6 , 201 6 

Finance Committee 

m • • I 

~~~ 
CUMBERLAND 

*COUNTY* 
:..ORTII CA R OL!:-:.'\ 



ITO'(Iay's,"Pr,esentation 
:: _ -::::;; - ~ _ _.... ~ - "" ~ -- ~..:.~ ~ - ~- - - ~ ~ -~ --

2 

8 
C UMBERLAND 

* COUNTY* 
:-ORTI! CAROLil"A 



s'fatute that gq:v,ern~_,.~t.he ap~praisa'l o.f real prope·rty 
.. •I cnnl'.'"" •• 1111 ·• , • 

.. '= l .·• ,, -

and the: adoption o·f the~. schedul'e ~of val.ues 

~~orth C:a ro'lina Genera I :s;tatute 1 .05 -3, 1'7{ b )[1.) 

r;eq~if~Sh~OfunifQ.(.rn;;. sch~dules·,.Of valu~s,:.standards, 
,,,.,•lj!~. ~ 1 q~'n _ "II 2 II · ' -

and tiJles be p(epared forl each re,valuation of real 
I~ u !•·: . ~· rl:l .. .r 
~ .Jf.:~·:··· .. ' .. .. II .I ' 

pro.R:l~rtx 

• CUMBERLAND 
* COUNTY* 

3 



MaJ ~~es;~lsfcrnd .. a:r.a.~~~J, ~an·~ ~·rvles be., ;adop.ted by Januarx~-· 
I ~~ "~ " IIIli II~ II:' 1111·•1 ,J ~.II~. rJ •.I ·' ' ·I ' I" I ,; . n.

1 
• 1 I .1 ·l'JJ ' 1 r.• •1 1111 1 : • • .- L .! , ~ ,___ · : 1 

.1 st of : theil;·l~·e·~~r~·, <?f~ ,.~be:'· fieappraisal 

rr.equ:it e.s that l unifo::rtb:i:~s·cheJ:Iules.=··~of valu.es1 ·staod:a rd·s; 
llllll~ ,:P ;!\.... " '"' I ·~ . I'' I' . !l :.•i· l 111•1 II : . 

and rtcil~s be pr'e~ented fo·;: the board of county 
IJIIJ{" 1 11••• !I I •• 1 

- 11 'j ,, 'I . 

commissi·oners ncit "l:ess than 2~ 1 days before the. 
'I 

me'eting in which they will be. considelred m ~ ~;) 
-~ 

C UMBERLAND 
* COUNTY* 
:O:ORTH CAROLJ:O:A 



ClJMBERL·\ ND COUNTY 
~' O RTH CA ROLINA 

a···orfl:t.
1
·g rm schedule:~::f.9:fi:;~\ycih).~:s~ standards, 

:rl •'1..11111 ,le:.l, •. ... '"'lll~r.J , . :·!-1' II .. 1 1!.1. .: ' 

and gu,idelines ~.f~Q be used in apprais·i.ng 

1009 Rn"3lu~rion 

The ·Rurpro_s
1el.o.f the manual is to describe. the 

.l II. n '' ~r~.. ~IJ j' l.lllll nl I. - " II ·_ ,. - ' " 
•1\f'' I. 'll' hJ ! I' ll . ' 

methoddlQ..gy and pr~¢edurles forr. appraising all 
' """" 1~'li- ~~~ i ~·I_' 1111 .• 'I ''''lli] ' " ' .·_ · ~. II . I 

.Ill. ' ,\f'\'1 f]l ~] " [1' • ~ I .1 • ~ I :.. IL. l 

Cumberland Go.untyJ1 req.l p~operty at market value 
1 .. I, ·I'" 

Ill 11-,- ~ ur.. • 11 ·· · ·· • . [I .·•'J. ··· ~ _. J •· 

and pt~-:s~ent ll:use'!:)y(~(l (fe'~loif~=th~ utime:· '<:>f . the .county's most 
l
. ' ~ <f ... ·~···· ... LI "'""'J 'i•IIIIIHil 1 I ~~1. l,,j., I ,1, •• " ~ I'll 1, i) I 1.1 , ~ 11 f 1 1 1 IIJ l r, • 

recentl~t;-eneral Rea-ppraisal {2Q::T.7). 

C UMBERLAND 
* COUNTY* 
:O.ORT H t ' AROLil'A 



-----
CUMBERL\No COUl\.'TY 

NOR T H t.ARO L I I>: A 

200 •> Re.-aluarion 

S.:hedulrs. Standarcls, 
and Rules 



Ge'll'~ral ~r.eappraisq_ l~' are ~·-~onduct_~d by applying 

mass· appr9l~P.·i~'t~:c~~iqo·~~~ ·:~~~~ .. t~~r9ugh analysis 
~f.~m appraisal staff ~"~d t~e. yse ~fa co~p_uter
assisted mass appraisal {CAM~) sq.ftware s.ystem. 

'' jJ] 11· ll1 .. 
iThei·isales comparison, ,~oJsf.;'~'land inc:C,me: approaches 

1 {l· ··1111 "~ • ~. • r., 

itfoJ:~·,v.aT•.ie;l•.t~ re·~·a lt~~e:·e-nsidfe.ted:~·:when q'ppli'ca ble to 

appraise all real pr.opert'Yi:;;~~ ~ ~:·:::· 
''X} I, II r, ;: fl ' II ~ I' 

I illi!ii:. 'II-. ; .. "I~' J 'J i<. lj11~~ · "" ''t ,':~. .: .. 11 ~ ~l~~ J 'ill: . J;:;. ~r lir• , ~ .. : :.r\~~ ., !;;, . :; ;1.j ,.; 
'I~ ·':• ~~ ~J j_11!:, IJ'l '~II ~!I\. :~ ? ,.IJ. I ' ••• " 1~1 I II I II. .,, 

lndustryt~~r;(l :r.da ·rds ;l1:hc(v~-·~!bl~·~n dev~l~oped for mass 
II, ll r~l :'IIIII .. ~ r:"l~ ~, II'' )1, II ' " . -

apprd.lSal,i:J~S,t as;,tbey,i'tlav~ been; fPr. singl~~p~9per!t· 
appraisals, tq p~odu~~ proper~y values tlaat are b.o.tn 
rleasonable and reliable. 



J.rne!l=challieng-e·~J~~t~i- develq·p~ tabl"es that ·cof.r~late th~, 
I,, ,,h,- lUI ,J I " ,l ~ • n ~-. · 111 

~I I II::::: :.I l' I I 

physic~ajl pr:9pert)l: data on file with the sales data to 

a 
C UMBERLAND 

* COUNTY* 
1\0RTtl CAROl l l\A 



lntroducfl,pn fo~:~s:Q~Xlifapplicable Generai 1
1

Statut~(~; . 
. , l11 Bit- ' I . ·~ .. - I .. , . w m 

mass·. appraisal lstan:~ards;, d~s.cription:,~o.f: the. 
:·· · _.:~1"-"ti:jt1! 1tt. -·l. , :r :~·r\ "l:l -,, .m ~~in ~~· .. , ··. "~ :~ ,,_ 
.~·9w.nf;_i)'··:S 'l.~~~~~.r~_oftware p·-r,o·g:r,am; and gene.ral 
I~ •l. I , r~l~ .~ , 

demographic inf~rmati'on .. _ 
I 1'1 I IJ~I[I t I 11'1 . ULU.JI ~J u l • II II tl• 

'~fl[~ 1 It l, I' • II , 1: 1 ~ ,,
11 

),8 l l:[ 
1 

(,rl L[( • [] 

II)fsc~ussion o'f methods ·~used to· alrr-iYe a,t ·land values 
l\ . .I :l • :..: 1 i 

11 'II ~ 11 ,1liltl~1 , ~:;.,.h ,~ ii11 1 l.•. " • .. ".11 " 1 • 1 11:1·: , , I 
\,_. " " II It '1 11 ' '" ' · I ']' 

. " ~ .1'jl~·,/ ,1Jil -~tiLl' J -·1~· ~ 1 I ~ 

ID.iscttission of ther~fhree·.~ :.appr.opche·s·~!~P valu·e 
:J:•I•iJ.,I~ II m'" [,111 •rJ r1 l 

II 'I 

·c;·6.sf~~Appr6cich modeling and calcula'tions for 
valving ali rea .. l property 

CUMBERLAND 
*CO UNTY* 



appraising certain incbme produ.cing: p'roperties 
• J r· ~ ,, ·J·I''.. ·r·· .,. . 'J , . • . ., ~,:::::: : 1 •1 ' I ,. J •• :1:-1 . i''l' '·~.:..- ·• : : .. 'I J •• ~ ... ~:--1 r• 1 rH • 1 [II 

UlJ 'J~''I 'CJ ., • l.l . ,J/·:··. '.l ,.,,IIIli, '· IJ'I 1 I ·I' '11 "I' [Iii " .b, · !" r f ~ 1
1 

:1 ~ • .l , 1, ~ . , _, • .J r, , • -''· , , • • r • , •, ... 1 

;Jtle Appeals 4?J:ocess 
Ill I 

Analysis oJ!!;~re.sidentlcd~,. comme:[¢ial, industrial and 

~an~,facfured h9me -~.?sts 'iren ~o~pared to sales 
~~ln 11[11111 ' '1': •• J ,, Ill' J ' ' ,, rr~oll ·II- I '.. 'l .I . •Lr 
I. r.1 l(I.I'U • ' II L ~· 'l' .. J ,,-I' '" ~1: 1 fi' rJ o1 , 1 .. r·~·'ll II 'r\J 11 !1 ~ J.~IH ") 'I""' rL _. n "iJ r r1 ''• , ,, .,, "'~: ... = 11 I ·~ f 1 r~11 , , ·- II rr 1 

~ppendix 

CUMBERLAND 
*COUNTY* 
:-.ORTH t" AROLI!'A . 



~ewspapein):.:9~~ annou:~~es the d,;d,:6'pfion d:ft' the. sov· and: the 
... liii~~···JII I ~~I" '.Ill Ill',.:, il ~-lh il:l . ~ . 1;1 .. ::~· ·• : ' .• . .. I • • ... 

~rP.~edu.~es f9t1~ppe·g,H.hg the)::.S.Qy?nto.· ~h,$, )~),r;~·p·~rty; 

C UMBERLAND 
* COUNTY* 
:-.ORTII CAROlll'A 



l"ORTtt C.o\ ROLI~A 





AMY H. CANNON 
County Manage•· 

JAMES E . LAWSON 
Deputy County Manager 

CUMBERLAND 
COUNTY 

NOR TH CA R OL I NA 

OFFICE OF THE COUNTY MANAGER 

MEMO FOR THE AGENDA OF THE 

ITEM NO. ~c.3rr=·-
MELISSA C. CARDINALI 

1\~sistant County Manager 

W. TRACY JACKSON 
1\ ssistant County Manager 

OCTOBER 6, 2016 MEETING OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

Prcscnter(s): 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEMBERS 

TAMMY GILLIS, INTERNAL AUDIT DIRECTOR~ 
SEPTEMBER 26, 2016 

CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT 
AND PLAN 

Tammy Gillis, Interna l Audit Director 

Estimated of Committee Time Needed: 10 Minutes 

BACKGROUND 

At the June 15, 2015 Board of Commissioner's meeting, an Audit/Finance Committee 
Charter was adopted. The Charter requires that an audit plan be submitted to the Audit 
Committee for approval. The Audit/Finance Committee approved a January- June 2016 
audit plan at the January 7, 2016 Finance Committee meeting. 

A summary of audits/projects completed during the January - June time period and a plan 
for the July- December 2016 time period are being submitted at this time. In January a 
plan for the second half of fiscal year 2017 wi ll be submitted. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends accepting the summary of completed January - June time period 
audits/projects report and approving the July- December 2016 Internal Audit Plan. 

5111 Floot·- Suite 512 • P.O . Box 1829 • Fayetteville, Notth Catolina 28302-1829 

(910) 678-7723 / (910) 678-7726 • Fax: (910) 678-7717 



Cumberland County Internal Audit 
Audit Tasks Complete 
January- June 2016 

Audit/Project 
./ Physical Inventories (Jan & Jun) 

./ Bank Accounts 

./ Cash receipts procedures review 

./ Cash Counts 

./ Fee and procedures review 

./ Review of Invoices for 3-5 years 

./ Sales tax distribution expenses 

./ Expenditures of County Funds 

Department 
Central Maintenance Facility (CMF) 
Solid Waste Garage 
Health/Jail Dept Pharmacy 

Social Services 

Sample of depts with petty cash or change funds 

Sample of depts. with change funds and/or petty cash funds 

Animal Control 

Solid Waste 

Board of Education 

Sample of Outside Agencies 



Cumberland County Internal Audit 

Audit Plan 

July- December 2016 

Audit/Project 

Physical inventories 

Inventory account reconcilitations 

Bank accounts 

Cash counts 

Review of procedures 

Schedule of Federal & State Expenditures 

Single Audit with Cherry Bekaert, CPA firm 

Department 

Central Maintenance Facility (CMF) 

Solid Waste garage 

Employee Pharmacy 

Health Department Pharmacy 

Health Department supply room 

CMF 

Solid Waste 

Sheriff- Detention Center 

Social Services 

Sample of depts with petty cash or change funds 

Detention Center Finance Division 

For FY2015-16 audit 

For FY2015-16 audit 



CUMBERLAND 
COUNTY 

NORT II CAROL.INA 

SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT 

MEMO FOR THE AGENDA OF THE 

ITEMNO. $ 

OCTOBER 6, 2016 MEETING OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

Requested by: 

Prcscn tcr( s): 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEMBERS 

JEFFERY P. BROWN, PE, INTERIM SOLID WASTE DIRECTOR 

SEPTEMBER 29, 2016 

CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF REQUEST TO SURPLUS 
SOLID WASTE EQUIPMENT 

JEFFERY P. BROWN, PE, INTERIM SOLID WASTE DIRECTOR 

JEFFERY P. BROWN, PE, INTERIM SOLID WASTE DIRECTOR 

Estimate of Committee Time Needed: SMINUTES 

BACKGROUND: 

Over the years, the Solid Waste Depattment has compiled quite a bit of equipment that has been 
taken out of service. The majority of this equipment is not in working condition and is located at 
both the Ann Street and Wilkes Road sites. In an effort to improve the functiona lity of the space as 
well as improving the aesthetics at each of these s ites, it is my recommendation that this equipment 
be declared surplus property and then sold. A list of this equi.pment is attached. 

Typically, the County utilizes GovDeals.com for selling surplus equipment. GovDeals.com requires 
extensive individual information be listed for equipment. Therefore, the Department is evaluating 
the possibility of having a public auction for this equipment. A public auction would be more 
efficient since it will take less time for staff to prepare and manage. It is my understanding that 
prior to utilizing GovDeals.com, the County did hold public auctions to sell surplus equipment. 

RECOMMENDATION/PROPOSED ACTION: 

The Interim Solid Waste Director along with County Management recommend that the Finance 
Committee approve the Solid Waste Department's request to declare the attached list of equipment 
surplus propctty and authorize the sale of the equipment. 

---·-·--·-·---------·--·---·-- J 
Visit us on the web at http://co.cumberland.nc.us/solid_waste.aspx 

~~ee~.!:.~.Y..~~!~~~!:!.~ 2~~-01 ··---- Telephone: 910.321.6830 -~ Fax: 910.321:~~~~-



Solid Waste Surplus Equipment/Vehicle List 

VEHICLE/ 

EQUIPMENT# VEHICLE/EQUIPMENT DECRIPTION VIN# LOCATION 

1 5 Bay Dual Axle 5th Wheel Dump Trailer Ann Street 

2 41 Mack Truck Model MR6855 (old water truck w/out tank} 1M2K127C5EM006938 Ann Street 

3 31 89 Volvo Rolloff Truck w/out lift Ann Street 

94 White International 3800 DT466 school bus; driver & one other seat, 

4 36 handicap lift 1HVB BAAM43 H 675973 Ann Street 

5 37 GM Milk truck with tommy lift on back Ann Street 

6 48 98 Ford F250 pick-up with tommy lift and cage 1FTPF27L5WKC3673 Ann Street 

7 55 99 Ford Ranger with tool box, bed liner 1FlYR10V3XUB78773 Ann Street 

8 3 2000 white Dodge pick-up no bed 1B7HC164X15200533 Ann Street 

9 23 White Chevy pick-up with no bed 1GCFR24HF373848 Ann Street 

10 84 Green Military 4x4 Chevrolet pick-up truck 1GCGD34J7EF341830 Ann Street 

11 7 2000 Ford Ranger 1FTYR14V2YTB38699 Ann Street 

12 17 2001 Ford F-250 Quad-cab 4x4 pick-up 1FTNW21LXiEB81671 Ann Street 

13 20 92 Ford F-250 custom work truck 1FTHF25H9NNA91243 Ann Street 

14 47 98 Ford F-150 V8 Triton, no seat 1FTRF17W6XNA7 4199 Ann Street 

15 54 96 Ford Ranger XL, no bed, no back wheels 1FTCR10U8TUC07812 Ann Street 

16 53 96 Ford Ranger XL pick-up 1FTCR10UXTUC07813 Ann Street 

17 Red custom deluxe Chevy pick-up Ann Street 

18 74 Ford Ranger CL pick-up 1FTCR10U4TPB60180 Ann Street 

19 115 D7H LGP Caterpillar Dozer Ann Street 

20 2 Red Mule 2500 Kawasaki dump bed Ann Street 

21 112 175 John Deere 2155 Tractor ID# L02155A613630 Ann Street 

22 Flat bed for truck Ann Street 

23 Holmes 600 wrecker bed serial# A89BJ8491 Ann Street 

24 Auto Crane serial# 320300-53CCT0999 Ann Street 

25 Air Compressor 276387 Ann Street 

26 #200 Air Diesel Deutz water pump Ann Street 

27 #227 Diesel Deutz on trailer model# F3L912 Ann Street 

28 #225 ConCover sprayer bed Ann Street 

29 Roll off lift Ann Street 

30 #532 Power Boss Sweeper model# TSS/88-LD Serial# 1895118 Ann Street 

31 Sand Blaster on black metal trailer Ann Street 

32 #242 Generator Model A265 Ann Street 
---



Solid Waste Surplus Equipment/Vehicle List 

VEHICLE/ 

EQUIPMENT# VEHICLE/EQUIPMENT DECRIPTION VIN# LOCATION 

33 Air Compressor 1350 lntek series NAPA model 828236T serial# 00008978 Ann Street 

34 NAPA Air Compressor model# 821033GTH serial# HOP279723 Ann Street 

35 INGERSOLL RAND Air Compressor model 2475 serial# 8036635 Ann Street 

36 Commercial 60" Riding John Deere F935 mower Ann Street 

37 #210 Amida light model 5.00-2MH serial 8811A0101 Ann Street 

38 #231 John Deere 48" push mower serial# GX1383XO Ann Street 

39 #201 96" pull behind electric magnet model 47085 serial 47082-19 Ann Street 

40 #108 Bobcat model 853 serial# 510250244 Ann Street 

41 #228 Bobcat Sweeper attachment serial# 434704200 Ann Street 

42 Bobcat forks Ann Street 

43 John Deere 613 bush hog Ann Street 

44 #271 5 ft box blade Ann Street 

45 White Truck bed Ann Street 

46 Blue & Grey Truck bed Ann Street 

47 #10 Military Wrecker truck ID# 05198C70-10577 Ann Street 

48 #250 Military Compressor unit model# P250-W-D-M-H268 serial155571 Ann Street 

49 Diesel Tank Truck bed serial# 362T1009 serial# 282T1010 Ann Street 

so Diesel Tank Truck bed with ext. serial# 282T1010 Ann Street 

51 I 16 -- 8 yard boxes Ann Street 

52 8 -- 1,000 gallon metal tanks Ann Street- Cherokee Bldg 

53 121 JCB Backhoe serial# AB577669V Ann Street- Cherokee Bldg 

54 103 Rex Trash Master Ann Street- Cherokee Bldg 
Mega 300-111 Daewood Loader rubber wheel 

55 160 Machine name: MG300-III Serioal 0135 Ann Street- Cherokee Bldg 

56 106 1978 Crane RT 300 ton HYDRAULIC model MC2500 serial 6245/72 Ann Street - White Goods Lot 

57 111 Motor Grader Wilkes Road 

58 43 1992 Ford F-250XL serial# 1FTEF25N6PLA42884 Wilkes Road 

59 110 Caterpillar Grader serial# 99E10948 _ Wilkes Road 
- -



AMY II. CANNON 
County l'vlanngcr 

JAMES E . LAWSON 
Deputy C:uurlty Manager 

CUMBERLAND 
COUNTY 

NO R T H CARO LI NA 

OFFICE OF THE COUNTY MANAGER 

MEMO FOR THE AGENDA OF THE OCTOBER 6, 2016 
MEETING OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE 

TO: FINANCE COMMITTEE 
FROM: 

DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

JAMES LAWSON, DEPUTY COUNTY MANAGER 

SEPTEMBER 29, 2016 
UPDATE ON DSS BUSINESS INTELLIGENCE PROCESS AND 

IMPLEMENTATION 

Requested by: James Lawson 
Presenter(s): James Lawson 
Estimate of Committee Time Needed: 10 Minutes 

BACKGROUND 

ITEMNO. ,5. 
MELISSA C. CARDINALI 

Assistant County Manager 

W. TRACY JACKSON 
1\~sistnnt County Manngcr 

As you are aware, the Finance Committee has approved recommendations from the Enterprise Solutions 
Division (ESD) regarding business process improvements in the DSS Food and Nutrition Services (FNS) 
program. Recommendations. were approved for the FNS Application and Recertification areas in August 
and September, respectively. The attached chart summarizes the action plan developed by the Business 
Intelligence Steering Committee and the steps completed in implementing the approved process 
improvements. 

Please note that a report and recommendation regarding the training component of FNS will be the next 
presentation to the Finance Committee. Currently, the ESD team is conducting a follow-up review of this 
area. Part ofthis follow-up will include a review of recent changes in the FNS training protocol. We expect 
to make a presentation on FNS Training at the November Finance Committee meeting. While this 
presentation has been delayed by one month, recently estab.lished protocols are expected to prevent or 
minimize future delays. 

In addition to structured meeting schedules, we have established the expectation that staff remain accessible 
to one another to support continual communication and collaboration to ensure ongoing progress throughout 
the review and implementation processes. 

RECOMMENDATION 

No action required, for informational purposes only. 

51" Floor- Suite 512 • P.O. Box 1829 • Fayetteville, N ordt Carolina 28302-1829 

(910) 678-7723 I (910) 678-7726 • Fax: (910) 678· 7717 



DSS ACTION PLAN STATUS UPDATE- FNS APPUCATIONS 

Note: Items in bold are primary items to be completed before testing. Non-Bold items are inc.luded in every recommendation os part of the full process. 

Rollout Approved 
Action Plan 

I Phases Recommendations 
St atus 

Continue to implement ~ Obtain approval of design document f rom DSS Management. ./ Completed [09/ 19/16]. 
Laserfiche ~ Submit design document t o One Source. ./ Completed [09/ 19/ 16]. 

. 0 Coordinate testing and implementation. • Pending action by One Source (vendor) 
1st 0 Complete testing phase. to begin testing and implementation of 

Tentative Deadline: TBD 0 Complete implementation phase. design for document imaging and 1st 
(Ongoing) . 0 Go-Live with laserfiche. workflow. 

0 Monitor and Control (3, 6, 9, 12 month evaluations). • Estimated start: Early Nov or Dec 

Add NCFAST Help Desk ~ Creat e separate Spice Works Help Desk system. ./ Completed [09/12/16]. 
Administrators to the ~ Add NCFAST Help Desk Administ rators as users. ./ Completed [09/12/ 16]. 
internal help desk 0 Coordinate testing and implementation. • Start Date: Oct 10. 

2nd system (Spiceworks) 0 Complete testing phase. 

Tentative Deadline: 0 Complete implementation phase. 

10/21/16 0 Go-Live with SpiceWorks Help Desk system. 

0 Monitor and Control (3, 6, 9, 12 month evaluations). 

Develop a Phone 0 Select 5 staff members t o participate in test group. • Planning "Drop Zone" (DSS sub-group) . 
Interview and a Pending 0 Identify phone interview questions t hat include all scenarios. • In progress (DSS sub-group). 
Applicat ions Team 0 Create phone interview question templat e (script). • In progress (DSS sub-group). 

0 Coordinate t esting and implementation. Note: DSS began discussing processes, work-

0 Complete testing phase. flows, incl drop zone prior to approval of 
3rd Tentative Deadline: 0 Complete implementation phase. formal recommendations. Intent of drop zone 

10/ 13/16 0 Go-live with Phone Interview and Pending Applications teams. 
is to route customers for immed processing to 
t eams; the related processes & work-flows 

0 Monitor and Control (3, 6, 9, 12 month evaluations). under development. The BISC will review 
progress and complete implement-tation lAW 
the approved recommendations . 

Develop an Expedite ~ Select 4-6 staff members to participat e in test group. ./ Completed [9/14/16]. 
Team for the 2"d floor 0 Identify processes to be involved. • In progress (DSS sub-group). 

I 
0 Develop workflow t o include tie-ins. • In progress (DSS sub-group) . 

4th 0 Coordinate testing and implementation. Also see note above re: phase 3 
Tentative Deadline: 0 Complete testing phase. 
10/27/16 0 Complete implementation phase. 

, 0 Go-Live with Expedite Team for 2"d floor. 

' 0 Monitor and Control (3, 6, 9, 12 month evaluations). 



DSS ACTION PLAN STATUS UPDATE- FNS APPLICATIONS 

Note: Items in bold ore primary items to be completed before testing. Non-Bold items ore included in every recommendation as port of the full process. 

I Train employees in two 0 Identify employees with knowledge of 2 or more programs. 
I programs (FNS and 0 Identify employees with knowledge of 2 or more processes. 

FCH/Adult Medicaid) 0 Select programs and processes to be included in testing. 

I 
D Select 4-6 staff members to participate in test group. 

5th D Coordinate refresher training as needed. 
0 Coordinate testing and implementation. 

Tentative Deadline: D Complete testing phase. 
12/ 01/16 D Complete implementation phase. 

D Go-live with Modified/Integrated Worker. 
0 Monitor and Control (3, 6, 9, 12 month evaluations). 

Phase out internal and [81 Identify staff members to participate in test group. 
external drop boxes* [81 Identify processes to be involved. 

[81 Develop workflow to include tie-ins. 
D Identify and coordinate notifications (fliers, press release, etc.). 

Tentative Deadline: 0 Coordinate testing and implementation. 
6th 02/ 16/17 D Complete testing phase. 

D Complete implementation phase. 
D Go-Live with Internal Drop Box elimination. 

0 Monitor and Control (3, 6, 9, 12 month evaluations). 

Create a NCFAST D Identify staff members responsible for maintaining manual. 
problem solving manual 0 Collect history of help desk tickets with resolution information. 

0 Identify issues to be included in manual. 
D Develop draft of manual. 

7th Tentative Deadline: 
D Collaborate to develop final draft for management review. 

0 Coordinate testing and implementation. 
12/01/16 D Complete testing phase. 

D Complete implementation phase. 
D Go-Live with NCFAST Problem Solving Manual. 
D Monitor and Control (3, 6, 9, 12 month evaluations). 

DSS- FNS APPLICATIONS ACTION PLAN ESTIMATED TIME OF COMPLETION: FEBRUARY 28, 2017 

(Evaluations: May 31, August 31, Nov 30, 2017, February 28, 2018) 

• In discussions (BISC} . 

• In discussions (BISC). 

• In discussions {BISC}. 

../ Completed [09/14/ 16]. 

../ Completed [09/14/16]. 

../ Completed [09/14/16]. 

• In progress (DSS sub-group) . 

• In progress (DSS sub-group) . 

Note: Internal drop boxes eliminated; 
customers routed to drop zone. The 
elimination of external drop boxes is pending. 
The BISC will review progress & complete 
implementation of this phase lAW the 
approved recommendations. 

Note: Preliminary discussions have taken 
place re: the problem solving manual. Will 
resume discussions as other phases are 
completed. 

Legend 
../ Completed 

• In progress 

BISC Bl Steering Committee 



AMY H. CANNON 
County Manager 

JAMES E. LAWSON 
Deputy County Manager 

TO: 

FROM: 

THROUGH: 

DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

Requested By: 

P resenter(s): 

CUMBERLAND 
COUNTY 

NORT H CAROL I NA 

OFFICE OF THE COUNTY MANAGER 

MEMO FOR THE AGENDA OF THE OCTOBER 6, 2016 
MEETING OF THE FINANCE COMMlTTEE 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEMBERS 

W. TRACY JACKSON, ASST. COUNTY MANAGER@) 

AMY H. CANNON, COUNTY MANAGER 

SEPTEMBER23, 2016 

ITEMNO. t,, 
MELISSA C. CARDINALI 

/\~sistant County Manager 

W. TRACY JACKSON 
/\ ssistant County Manager 

JOINT 911 CENTER CONSULTING SERVICES FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
GRANT APPLICATfON AND CONSOLJDATrON PLANNING 

W. Tracy Jackson, Asst. County Manager 

W. Tracy Jackson, Asst. County Manager 

Estimate of Committee Time Needed: 10 Minutes 

BACKGROUND 
At the Joint City-County Meeting held on September 16111

, staff presented information to both governing 
bod ies regarding continuation of the Joint 911 Center Project. In a subsequent meeting held later on 
September 161

h, the Joint 911 Steering Committee held its organ izational meeting. Staff presented 
information at both meetings requesting to extend the contract of Mission Critical Pattners (MCP) who 
did the preliminary feas ibi lity study regarding a Joint 911 Center for Cumberland County and the City of 
Fayetteville. In order to fully develop a plan for consolidating the separately existing City and County 911 
Center's, and apply for the next round of NC 91 1 Fund grants, it is necessary to obtain furthe1· assistance 
from MCP. Attached is a copy of the most recent MCP proposal that includes a description ofthe work to 
be accomplished at an estimated cost of $104,000. It is proposed that the City and County do a 50/50 cost 
share for these services. The City of Fayetteville plans to address this at its October I 0111 City Council 
Meeting. 

RECOMMENDATION/PROPOSED ACTION: 
Staff recommends approval of a budget revision in the amount of $52,000 so the County can participate in 
funding the cost of MCP's continued work on the Joint 9 1 I Center Project. 

Courthouse • 5111 Floor • Suite 512 • P.O. Box 1829 • Fayetteville • North Carolina 28302-1829 

(910) 678-7723 / (910) 678-7726 • Fax: (910) 678-7717 



M • 
September 9, 2016 

Mr. Tracy Jackson, Asst. County Manager for Support Services 
Cumberland County 
Cumberland County Courthouse 
117 Dick Street 
Fayetteville, NC 28301 

Mr. Kristoff T. Bauer, Deputy City Manager 
City of Fayetteville 
City Hall 
433 Hay Street 
Fayetteville, NC 28302 

Subject: Consultative Services for Grant Support and Consolidation Master Plan 

Dear Mr. Jackson and Mr. Bauer: 

Mission Crit ical Partners, Inc. (MCP) appreciates the opportunity to offer Cumberland County (County) 
and the City of Fayetteville (City) consultative public safety communications services. 

Attached is an Amendment to the professional services agreement. If you should have any questions or 
comments, please do not hesitate to contact me via my cell phone, 919-210-5255, or e~ma il 

PhilipPenny@mcp911 .com. 

Kind regards, 

MISSION CRITICAL PARTNERS, INC. 

~d 
Philip L. Penny 
Public Safety Consultant 

MlsslonCrltlcatPartners 
4801 Glenwood Ave, Suite 200 I Raleigh, NC 27612 I 888.8.MCP.911 or919·390·0321 I www.MCP911.com 



M • 
BACKGROUND 

Cumberland County and the City of Fayetteville have identified the need to maintain a professional 
services agreement with Mission Critical Partners to assist them as they move forward with developing 
a strategic plan to consolidate their respective public safety answering points (PSAPs) into a single 
county-wide PSAP that would serve most public safety agencies throughout Cumberland County. 
Mission Critical Partners, Inc. (MCP) team is proposing to provide consultative expertise for defining a 
programmatic approach and alternatives relative to purpose, scope, cost and schedule associated with 
the County's and City's communications mission. 

SCOPE OF WORK 

MCP has completed numerous consolidation projects and assisted multiple jurisdictions to expand 

regionalized 911 services throughout a county region. In order to identify the most appropriate plan, 
MCP has conducted joint programming studies to determine the cost and strategy for constructing a 
new PSAP and Emergency Operations Center (EOC) that would integrate public safety functions. MCP 
has supported a number of successful North Carolina 911 grant applications, led the implementation of 
the approved consolidation plan, as well as bid, award and overall management of the project through 
coordination of the Project Team members on behalf of the client. These services included coordination 
of facility design, systems and telecommunications technology, migration of operations and staff, and 
assistance to PSAP leadership in the implementation and transition of the project. 

MCP's leadership will result in the development of an overall consolidation master plan, revised facility 
programming, grant application, proposed budget and high-level proposed schedule for all facets of the 
project by tying together all of the components necessary for a successful consolidation. At the request 
of the County and City, MCP will serve as the facilitator at the LEC meetings to accomplish the 
identified goals and objectives. 

Schrader Group Architecture (SGA), in concert with MCP and the County and City, wil l work to modify 
the building program that was developed as part of the previous overall programming and planning 
study. SGA will faci litate a follow-up workshop to modify the building program spreadsheet only. It is 
understood at this time that the concept building diagrams and concept site diagrams do not require 
modification. Following the workshop, SGA will verify and review the documents developed at the 

workshop and will return it to MCP and the County and City to use for development of the grant 
application. 

MCP will work at the direction of the County and City and will provide a single point of contact. We 
employ a Project Management Institute (PMI) approach to projects and tasks where appropriate. The 
services to be provided to the County and City via this agreement include: 

• Master Planning 

o Consolidation Budget and Fiscal Needs 

o Strategic Consolidation Master Plan 

MlsslonCrltlcaiPartners 
4801 Glenwood Ave, Sulle 200 I Raleigh, N0 7612 I 888.8,MCP.911 or919·390·0321 I www.M(P911.com 2 



M • 
o Grant Preparation Assistance and Submittal 

• Project Management Activities 
o Architectural Programming Services in concert with SGA 

o LEC Meeting Facilitator 
• Consolidation Operational Planning 

o Organizational Structures (for programming and spacing needs) 
o Staffing (for building layouts and master plan) 

o Technology (for grant submittal) 

o Operational Review (for grant and master plan) 
o Event Processing (for grant and master plan) 

PROJECT PRICING 

Professional services outlined in the above scope of services will be provided as a fixed fee of 
$103,921 , including expenses. These services offered to the County and City will be effective through 
April 30, 2017. 

The fee is fu lly loaded, and MCP recognizes that it is responsible for costs related to travel, housing, 
transportation , per diems, communications devices, and computer equipment. Any additional services 
would be performed based on the then-current fee schedule. Prior to initiating any such additional work, 
MCP would require a formal letter of authorization from the City of Fayetteville. 

MlsslonCrlticaiPartners 
4801 Glenwood Ave, Suite 200 I Raleigh, NC 27612 I888.8.MCP.911 or919·390·0321 I www.MCP911.com 3 



M • 
ADDENDUM #1 

TO 
MASTER SERVICE AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 
AND 

MISSION CRITICAL PARTNERS, INC. 

THIS ADDENDUM #1 , made as of the date written below by and between the City of 
Fayetteville, North Carolina hereinafter referred to as "COF", doing business at 433 Hay Street, 
Fayetteville, NC 28301, and Mission Critical Partners, Inc. hereinafter referred to as "VENDOR", both 
hereinafter also referred to individually and collectively as "Party" or "Parties." 

RECITALS 

Whereas, the COF and VENDOR are parties to a Master Service Agreement dated August 7, 
2015 (Mission Critical Partners Project #15-156) for Project Scope and Professional Engineering 
Design for Professional Architectural Services to Complete a Needs Assessment and Feasibility Study 
for Co-location of the Fayetteville and Cumberland County 911 Public Safety Answering Points 
(PSAPs) and Emergency Operations Center (EOC) (Master Agreement) . 

Whereas, the COF desires to employ VENDOR to provide additional consultative expertise for defining 
a programmatic approach to Consolidation relative to purpose, scope, cost and schedule associated 
with the County's and City's communications mission; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, COF AND VENDOR, in consideration of the mutual promises and 
covenants contained in the Master Agreement, the parties hereto do mutually agree as follows: 

1. PURPOSE - ADDITIONAL SERVICES 
The purpose(s) of this Addendum #1 to the Master Agreement is to provide consultative 

expertise for defining a programmatic approach to Consolidation relative to purpose, scope, cost and 
schedule associated with the County's and City's communications mission, as detailed in Schedule A 
Scope of Work. These Additional Services are effective through April 30, 2017. 

2. COMPENSATION 
For and in consideration of the Additional Services described in this Addendum #1 to the Master 

Agreement, COF agrees to pay VENDOR a fixed fee of $103,921, including expenses. 

MissionCriticaiPartners 
4801 Glenwood Ave, Sulle 200 I Raleigh, NC 27612 I 888.8.MCP.911 or919·390·03ll I www.MCP911.<om 



M • 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Addendum #1 to Master Agreement effective 
the day and year below written. 

Witness: 

By: 

Date: 

Date: 

City of Fayetteville, North Carolina 
(CLIENT) 

Attestation of City Clerk: 

This instrument has been preaudited in the manner 
required by the local government budget and fiscal 
control act. 

Mission Critical Partners, Inc. 
(PROVIDER) 

September 9, 201 6 

MlsslonCriticaiPartners 
4801 Glenwood Ave, Suite 200 I Raleigh, NC 27612 I 888.8.MCP.911 or 919·390·0321 I www.MCP911.com 2 



M • 
SCHEDULE A- SCOPE OF WORK 

SCOPE OF WORK 

MCP has completed numerous consolidation projects and assisted multiple jurisdictions to expand 
regionalized 911 services throughout a county region. In order to identify the most appropriate plan, 
MCP has conducted joint programming studies to determine the cost and strategy for constructing a 
new PSAP and Emergency Operations Center (EOC) that would integrate public safety functions. MCP 
has supported a number of successful North Carolina 911 grant applications, led the implementation of 
the approved consolidation plan, as well as bid, award and overall management of the project through 
coordination of the Project Team members on behalf of the client. These services included coordination 
of facility design, systems and telecommunications technology, migration of operations and staff, and 
assistance to PSAP leadership in the implementation and transition of the project. 

MCP's leadership will result in the development of an overall consolidation master plan, revised facility 
programming, grant application, proposed budget and high-level proposed schedule for all facets of the 
project by tying together all of the components necessary for a successful consolidation. At the request 
of the County and City, MCP will serve as the facilitator at the LEC meetings to accomplish the 
identified goals and objectives. 

Schrader Group Architecture (SGA), in concert with MCP and the County and City, will work to modify 
the building program that was developed as part of the previous overall programming and planning 
study. SGA will facilitate a follow-up workshop to modify the building program spreadsheet only. It is 
understood at this time that the concept building diagrams and concept site diagrams do not require 
modification. Following the workshop, SGA will verify and review the documents developed at the 
workshop and will return it to MCP and the County and City to use for development of the grant 
application. 

MCP will work at the direction of the County and City and will provide a single point of contact. We 
employ a Project Management Institute (PMI) approach to projects and tasks where appropriate. The 
services to be provided to the County and City via this agreement include: 

• Master Planning 
o Consolidation Budget and Fiscal Needs 

o Strategic Consolidation Master Plan 

o Grant Preparation Assistance and Submittal 
• Project Management Activities 

o Architectural Programming Services in concert with SGA 
o LEC Meeting Facilitator 

MlsslonCrltlcaiPartners 
4801 Glenwood Ave, Suite 200 I Raleigh, NC27612 I 888.8.MCP.911 or919·390·0321 1 www.MCP911.com 3 



M • 
• Consolidation Operational Planning 

o Organizational Structures (for programming and spacing needs) 
o Staffing (for building layouts and master plan) 
o Technology (for grant submittal) 
o Operational Review (for grant and master plan) 
o Event Processing (for grant and master plan) 

MlsslonCriticaiPartners 
4801 Glenwood Ave, Suite 200 I Raleigh, NC27612 1 888.8.MCP.911 or919·390·0321 1 www.MCP911.com 4 



M • 
Appendix B-Hourly Rates 

MISSION CRITICAL PARTNERS, INC. 
2016 Rate Schedule- Including Expenses 

Support Specialist $ 85.00 

Support Specialist I $ 91 .00 

Support Specialist II $109.00 

Support Specialist Ill $114.00 

Emergency Number Specialist $122.00 

Public Safety Specialist $140.00 

Policy Specialist/Technical Writer $140.00 

Public Safety Specialist II $152.00 

Communications Specialist $165.00 

Planner $175.00 

Assistant Project Manager $176.00 

Technology Specialist I $188.00 

Project Manager $194.00 

Consultant $200.00 

Lead Policy Consultant $200.00 

Operations Specialist I $200.00 

Technology Specialist II $200.00 

Operations Specialist II $212.00 

Emergency Response Specialist $212.00 

Sr. Technology Specialist $212.00 

Sr. Project Manager $218.00 

Sr. Consultant $225.00 

Program Manager $230.00 

Forensics Analyst $237.00 

Sr. Program Manager $257.00 

Consulting Manager $257.00 

Principal $268.00 

MlsslonCrltlcaiPartnars 
4801 Glenwood Ave, Suite 200 I Raleigh, NC 27612 I 888.8.MCP.911 or919·390·0321 I www.MCP911.<om 5 



ITEM NO. 7.. 
VICKI EVANS 
Finance Director 

ROBERT TUCKER 
Accounting Supuvisor 

TO: 
FROM: 
DATE: 

FINANCE OFFICE 
4'" Floor, Room No. 451. Courthouse • PO Box 1829 • Faymeville, NOLth Carolina 28302-I 829 

(910) 678-7753 • F~x (9JO) 323-6120 

MEMO FOR THE AGENDA OF THE OCTOBER 6, 2016 
MEETING OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE 

FINANCE COMMITTEE ~} 
VICKI EVANS, FINANCE DIRECTOR \ll)v 
SEPTEMBER 27,2016 

SUBJECT: MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT - JUNE YTD FY16 

Presenter(s): Vicki Evans, Finance Director 

Estimate of Committee Time Needed: 5 Minutes 

BACKGROUND 

The attached financial report is for fiscal year 2016, June year-to-date, 13th period. The report 
run date was September 20 and final amounts are still subject to change as we are still in the 
process of closing out the year as we go through the financial audit. 

Highlights ofthe 13th period include: 

• Revenues 
o Sales tax - the FY16 total amount is short by the final collection month of the 

fiscal year. The funding had not been received as of the report run date. 
However, as oftoday's memorandum date, we do know the sales tax total came in 
slightly over $41 million. 

• Expenditures 
o The 13111 period reflects final adjustments which are typical when reconciling prior 

to closing out the fiscal year. 

• Crown center expense summary/prepared food and beverage and motel tax 
o Previously provided during the September 1 finance committee meeting. 

RECOMMENDATION/PROPOSED ACTION 

No action needed - for information purposes only. 



GENERAL FUND 

Real, Personal. Public- Cl.n'ellt 
Motor Ve!ides - C...rent 
Motor Vehicle- Tax & Tag 
Prior Years & other 

Pet Registration Fees 
Sales Tax Vtdeo & T eleoommlA"'ications 
other Taxes 

ABC Store 3.5% 
ABC Store Profrt 

Total 

Fay Sales Tax Equalization-Original 
Fay Sales Tax Equalization 
Wade Sales Tax Equalization 
Eastover Sales Tax Equalization 
Stedman Sales Tax Equalization 
Spring Lake Sales Tax Equalization 
Godwin Sales Tax Equalization 
Other 

Mental Heal1h Consofldation 
Social Services 
Ubrary 
Child Support Enforcement 
Other 

Register of Deeds 
Inspections 
Other 

Heal1h Department 
Library Fees 
Sheriff Fees 
Social Services Fees 
Other 

CFVMC 
Olhef 

Gain/Loss 

Total 

Sale of FIXed Assets/Cash Proceeds 
Transfers 
lnstallmerrt /Purchase Revenue 
Furtd Balance- Former Health 
Furtd Balance- Property Revaluations 
Furtd Balance Mairrtenance/Renovations 
Fund Balance - Health 
Fund Balance - Special 
FU'Id Balance- Mental Health Transfer 
Fund Balance -Economic Incentives 
Fund Balance - Water & Sewer 
Fund Balance Appropriated 

Total 

Total General Fund 

693,115 
2,149,272 
1,143,575 
2,292,926 

550 
0 

75 
89,210 

1,195 

0 
213,320 

4.063.682 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

0 0 
22.804 0 

2,723,292 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 

CUMBERLAND COUNTY REVENUE SUMMARY 

0 
236,124 

6,786,974 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

600,000 
1,100.000 
2,218,318 
4,501 ,358 

500 
0 

100 
100,000 

1,500 

0 
0 

st.n 7 
6 ,796,728 

0 
0 

147,696 
783,400 
767,714 

0 
3 ,066,985 

233,711 
530,000 

0.00% 246,764 
0 .00% 0 

456.48% 49,719 
99.86% 4,456,870 
0.00% 3 ,000.000 
0.00% 0 
0.00% 0 
0 .00% 0 
0.00% 0 
0.00% 0 
0 .00% 0 
0.00% 0 
0.00% 0 

6 ,548 0 253,312 214,375 
0 225,203 225,203 0 

7,148 (258,977) (202,110) 49,109 
1,196,138 24,000 5,677,008 5,677,009 

0 0 3,000,000 3,000,000 
0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 25,400 
0 0 0 3,100,000 
0 0 0 533,437 
0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 2,598,786 
0 0 0 804,783 
0 0 0 500,000 



GENERAL FUND 

General Administration (410) 

Buildings & Grounds (411) 

General Government (412) 
Debt Service 
General Government Other 
Total General Government 

law Enforcement (422) 
Sheriff 
Jail 

Total law Enforcement 

Pubi"JC Safety (420, 424, 426, 429) 

Health (431, 432) 
Heal1h All Other 

Total Heal1h Department 

Mental Health (435) 
Mental Health Other (County) 

Social Services (437) 
Social Services 
Other DSS Programs 

Total Social Services 

Other Human Services (439) 
Child Support Enforcement 
Other HS Programs 

Total Human Services 

Ubrary (440) 
Ubrary 
Ubrary Other 

Total Ubrary 

Culture & Recreation ( 442) 

Eoonomic Development (450, 452, 

Subtotal 

Education (470) 
County Sdlool Current Exp 

Goodyear Incentive 
Sales Tax Equalization 

FTCC Current Expense 
FTCC PEG 
FTCC Capital Outlay 

Total Education 

Total General Fund 

GENERAL FUND SUMMARY OF OBLIGATIONS 

16,141,159 1,713,503 (150,450) 17,704,212 19,956,574 16,413,322 1,156,441 347,746 17,917,509 19,808,794 

7,416,804 767,507 3,061 8 ,187,372 8,910,238 7 ,687,698 370,625 96,389 8,154,712 8 ,487,266 


	Finance Committee Agenda-October 6, 2016 
	Item 1. Approval of Minutes-September 1, 2016 Regular Meeting
	Item 2. 2017 Revaluation-Overview of Schedule of Values and Timeline 
	Item 3. Consideration of Approval of Internal Audit Report and Plan
	Item 4. Consideration of Approval of Request to Surplus Solid Waste Equipment
	Item 5. Update on DSS Business Intelligence Process and Implementation
	Item 6. Joint 911 Center Consulting Services for the Purpose of Grant Application and Consolidation Planning
	Item 7. Monthly Financial Report



